
Call To Order

Roll Call

Approval Of Agenda

Approval Of Minutes From Past Meetings

MARCH 3, 2020 ZC MEETING MINUTES.PDF
MARCH 17, 2020 ZC MEETING MINUTES.PDF

Approval Of Report To Hardin County Board Of Supervisors Supporting Previous 
Recommendation To Approve Proposed Amendments To Article XXIII Of The Hardin County 
Zoning Ordinance No. 29 Which Relates To Non-Commercial Wind Energy Conversion 
System Permitted Uses And Commercial Conditional Use Wind Energy Conversion System 
Standards

COMMISSION REPORT.PDF

Other Business

Adjournment

1.

2.

3.

4.

Documents:

5.

Documents:

6.

7.

https://www.hardincountyia.gov/820675a1-9b94-4966-9793-fda1a1c4bc7c


  
JESSICA SHERIDAN|ZONING ADMINISTRATOR 

1215 EDGINGTON AVE 
ELDORA, IA 50627 

641.849.7372 
JSHERIDAN@HARDINCOUNTYIA.GOV 

 

HTTP://WWW.HARDINCOUNTYIA.GOV 

   

 

 
 
 

Hardin County Zoning Commission 
Tuesday, March 3, 2020 

6:30 PM, Hardin County Courthouse Large Conference Room 
 

Meeting Minutes 

 
6:30 PM - Meeting called to order.  
 
Roll call: Stan, Katie, Trent, and Curt were present. Heidi Young was absent. 
Also in attendance were: Jessica Sheridan, Mark Buschkamp, Judy Neymeyer, Jacob Winter, Eric Duncan, Jeff Hoffman, 
Darrell Meyer, Leland Mosch, Roger Sutton, Sharon Winter, Richard Winter, Wes Wiese, Jo Baumann, Kirk Yung, Bette 
Dossman, Josh Odom, and Mariah Lynn. 
 
Agenda approval: Stan made a motion to approve the agenda, Curt seconded, motion passed. 
 
Minutes approval: Curt made a motion to approve the minutes from February 6, 2020 and February 25, 2020, Trent 
seconded, motion passed. 
 
Public forum: Katie opened the public forum. 
 
Jessica explained that last week’s meeting was a public hearing, and we’re hoping for this conversation to be more 
focused on actual details of ordinance.  
 
Discussed decommissioning standards. We added procedural details. Applicant shall provide proof of energy production 
every 3 months. Trying to prevent being blindsided by a wind turbine being out of production for one year. Changed 
removal depth of foundation from 4 feet to 6 feet. Added the requirement that the company must provide proof that 
they possess 130% of decommissioning cost. There was a question about who is responsible for decommissioning. The 
applicant is responsible. Also, a question about why only 6-foot removal depth. There was a lot of discussion that led to 
the decision of a 6-foot removal depth. 4 feet is actually industry standard.  
 
Judy Neymeyer asked why companies want to put wind turbines on productive farmland instead of somewhere else. 
Darrell Meyer explained that it’s individual landowners who have sold easements for wind turbines.  
 
Concerns about effects on infrastructure. Concerns that wind turbines are an isolated benefit and don’t benefit the 
entire community (example given was the ethanol industry). Darrell explained that we tried to build in protections so 
that the project would have as little of a footprint as possible. Some concerns that wind turbines wouldn’t even exist if 
there weren’t “tax breaks” for them. Concerns that the project wouldn’t actually create very many jobs. 
 
Drainage: Drainage section does not cover private drainage systems, only county owned drainage systems. Requires 
$50,000 deposit per wind turbine for county owned system. County cannot get into private sector. If one neighbor’s 
drainage causes an issue for a neighboring property owner, they would have to solve that themselves, possibly through 
litigation. Drainage district permits are a way for private drainage owners to be protected. 
 
 
 



  
JESSICA SHERIDAN|ZONING ADMINISTRATOR 

1215 EDGINGTON AVE 
ELDORA, IA 50627 

641.849.7372 
JSHERIDAN@HARDINCOUNTYIA.GOV 

 

HTTP://WWW.HARDINCOUNTYIA.GOV 

   

 

 
 
Roads: Explained road repair requirements and that applicant is required to have a road agreement with the county. 
130% financial security requirement. 
 
Discussed setback requirement changes: Someone asked what the average height of a wind turbine is. 300-500 feet. 
Concerns about protecting other people using setback distances. Katie encouraged people to go speak to the other 
boards and commissions and make sure they are doing their due diligence in the approval process. RWE says that a 2X 
Total Height setback to ROW, property lines, and non-dwelling units would essentially put a moratorium on wind 
turbines. Leland Mosch made comment that any shadow flicker that appears on someone else’s property should require 
an easement because it is a nuisance. 
 
Concerns about the lack of process the company has to follow to get turbines approved. Concerns about lack of 
communication from wind company to community. 
 
Darrell explained setback changes being made to ordinance.  
 
Darrell asked if the current ordinance causes any concern for the wind turbine company. 
 
Jessica Sheridan explained that in addition to approval by other boards and commissions, there will be public hearings 
on any proposed project. Jo Baumann has concerns about what actual power people have by attending public hearings 
and voicing their opinions. Discussion of process for approval from other boards and entities. Darrell described it as a 
checkpoint. Discussion of different local boards and commissions which must give approval for application. 
Wes Wiese asked what the timeframe would be for the local boards and commissions to give their decision on the 
application. Jo Baumann concerned about amount of time it will take to analyze applications. Darrell stated that ideally 
different boards and commissions would have a set of guidelines for applicants to follow.  
 
Jo Baumann stated concerns about wildlife (bats and birds, specifically). Concerns about how this will affect the 
watershed. 
 
Questions from RWE about how the permitting process will go with the boards and commissions approval. 
Darrell asked how the company typically submits applications. They said they submit their requested turbine locations 
and then some alternate locations. 
 
Comments about the natural views and Greenbelt that we have in Hardin County that needs to be protected. 
 
Discussed new recording requirement. 
 
Discussed new requirement for facility owner to have a local point of contact with local office. 
 
Katie closed the public forum. 
 
Set Date and Time for Next Meeting: Board will discuss over email when best time is for everyone. 
 
Other business: None 
 
Motion to adjourn: Trent made a motion to adjourn, Stan seconded, motion passed. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 7:40 PM. 



  
JESSICA SHERIDAN|ZONING ADMINISTRATOR 

1215 EDGINGTON AVE 
ELDORA, IA 50627 

641.849.7372 
JSHERIDAN@HARDINCOUNTYIA.GOV 

 

HTTP://WWW.HARDINCOUNTYIA.GOV 

   

 

 

Hardin County Zoning Commission 
Tuesday, March 17, 2020 

6:00 PM 
 

Zoom Meeting 
 

(312) 626-6799 – Meeting ID: 565 218 383 – URL: https://zoom.us/j/565218383  
 

Meeting Minutes 
 
 
6:04 PM – Meeting called to order. 
 
Roll call: Stan, Trent, and Katie were present. Curt Groen joined the call at 6:11 PM. 
Also in attendance were: Mark Buschkamp, Darrell Meyer, RWE representative (Mariah Lynne?), BJ Hoffman 
 
Agenda approval: Katie asked for a motion to approve the agenda, Trent made a motion, Stan seconded, motion 
passed. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Everything in the proposed ordinance amendment is the same as the previous meeting except:  
 

• Added long term care facilities and early care and education facilities to noise setback locations  

• Removed “pure” from “steady pure tone” in noise section 

• Local boards and commissions: added 120 days for preliminary review  

• Since there was a concern about the 2X total height setback, we added the possibility that the applicant could 
obtain a waiver to lower setback requirement to no less than 1.1X total height.  

 
All commission members agreed with proposed changes.  
 
Katie asked for a motion to recommend the amended ordinance, Stan made the motion, Trent seconded - Curt noted 
that he thinks the ordinance is decent and can be defended by the County Attorney - all members voted in favor of the 
recommended wind turbine ordinance as it stands. 
 
Other Business: None 
 
Adjournment: Curt made a motion to adjourn, Trent seconded, motion passed. 
 
6:17 PM – Meeting adjourned. 
 
 

https://zoom.us/j/565218383


1 
 

HARDIN COUNTY ZONING COMMISSION  

REPORT/RECOMMENDATION IN SUPPORT OF PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO ORDINANCE 29, ARTICLE 
XXIII 

 

This recommendation is made pursuant to Iowa Code and local ordinance(s). 

The Commission voted on March 17, 2020 to approve and recommend to the Board of Supervisors 
changes to Article XXIII or Ordinance 29, regulating commercial wind energy conversion through 
conditional use permits. 

In summary, the major, substantive changes include: 

1. Increased wind turbine setback requirements; 
2. Increased developer financial responsibility requirements; 
3. Increased developer decommissioning requirements; 
4. Increased submission requirements/procedures for conditional use permit. 

The recommended changes are made in accordance with the comprehensive plan and Iowa law, and are 
designed to preserve the availability of agricultural land, to protect the health and general welfare, to 
promote the conservation of energy resources, and are made with reasonable consideration of the 
character of the area and the peculiar suitability of such area for particular uses with a view to the most 
appropriate use of land throughout Hardin County.  (Iowa Code 335.5) 

 

Background 

In December 2019, the Hardin County Board of Supervisors passed a resolution placing a temporary 
moratorium “on C-WEC permit applications for the purpose of drafting and adopting any necessary and 
proper revisions to the C-WEC ordinance”.  Through its resolution, the Board of Supervisors expressly 
identified several interests impacted by C-WEC development: 

a. Agriculture and drainage districts; 
b. New emergency communication infrastructure; 
c. Decommissioning; 
d. County infrastructure; 
e. Natural resources; 
f. Property rights.  

Hardin County regulates C-WECs through zoning, specifically Article XXIII of Ordinance 29. By local 
ordinance and Iowa law, the task of drafting, and recommending for adoption, any revisions fell upon 
this Commission. 

 

Process 

In light of the resolution’s mandate, the Commission and the Zoning Director did the following: 



2 
 

a. reviewed of the current ordinance; 
b. reviewed ordinances from other counties; 
c. reviewed industry publications and guidelines on best practices; 
d. received input from members of the public and professionals; 
e. worked through iterations of amendments with input from the community and industry; 
f. held public hearings, making revisions based on those hearings; 
g. approved and recommended for adoption amended Article XXIII. 

In addition to the concerns identified by the resolution, the following interests were voiced during the 
public hearings held by the Commission in this process (as well as regular public meetings held  by the 
Board of Supervisors), and were considered by the Commission: 

a. agricultural lifestyle/quality of life 
b. public health 
c. airspace 
d. economic benefits from development 
e. . 

 

Analysis / Moratorium Grounds 

Increased setbacks address private and public drainage concerns by reducing density of wind turbine 
placement.  Greater spacing also reduces the interference with emergency communications.  Increased 
setbacks also provides a buffer for natural resources and watersheds.  The setbacks proposed still 
permit private property conditional use development while protecting the rights of adjacent property 
owners to be less burdened by flicker and noise from industrial activity in an agriculture zone.  

Increased financial responsibility of the developer increases the equitable distribution of development 
costs and benefits by requiring the developer to provide more financial security up front for negative 
impacts to drainage infrastructure that can occur over the life of the conditional use permit, and shifts 
those burdens away from those engaged in agricultural use of the land.  It also protects the County’s 
emergency communications by directing turbine placement to areas with less impact on such 
communications.  

Increased decommissioning requirements increases the likelihood of restoring the county’s prime farm 
land and other natural resources by requiring the developer to provide more financial security up front 
for negative impacts on drainage infrastructure that can occur over the life of the conditional use 
permit, as well as assists in restoring the agricultural land.  The proposed amendment also better defines 
“decommissioning” and better secures financial responsibility from original developers and assigns.  This 
also protects the County’s natural resources from disposal issues that exist and may exist in the future.  
By fortifying the decommissioning requirements, the amendment ensures that landowners can abate 
nuisances from abandoned wind conversion facilities.  

Increased submission requirements and procedures increases the level of collaboration of all 
stakeholders, both during the planning and during the implementation of land use decisions under this 
ordinance for conditional use permits for commercial wind energy conversion in land zoned Agricultural. 
The proposed changes provide for collaboration between the County, its many boards and commissions, 



3 
 

local airports and area emergency agencies, as well as an opportunity for collaboration with various 
State and Federal agencies.  Better communication to identify, avoid and address drainage concerns are 
ensured by involving drainage district trustees and the County Drainage Clerk.  Involving the 911 Board 
and Emergency Management Commission identifies, avoids and addresses concerns posed to 
emergency services.  Involving the County Solid Waste Commission ensures that solid waste is handled 
responsibly, and without over-burdening or monopolizing the county landfill, especially during 
construction and decommissioning. Involving the Federal, State and local environmentally conscious 
agencies helps ensure the County’s natural resources are always considered during industrial 
development in sensitive agricultural and near green spaces.  The amended ordinance protects property 
rights of landowners wanting to allow industrial development in the rural areas of the County, while 
balancing the rights and interests across a cross-section of the County.   

 

Analysis / County Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 3: Land Use / Zoning of the comprehensive plan indicates that 71% of Hardin County’s 
population lives in rural areas.  It also notes that agricultural interests are protected.  The 
comprehensive plan made recommendations for land use policy.  It states: 

“Most of rural Hardin County land is used for agricultural production. Prime farm land, 
conservation areas, timber, wilderness, the Iowa Falls Airport, and the Iowa River Greenbelt 
should be protected through smart land use planning. There are opportunities for developments 
in the rural areas that provide economic benefits, protect the area, and preserve key resources. 
This section provides guidance for Hardin County land use policy.” 
  

     Under “Rural Development”, Chapter 3 states: 

“The vast majority of rural Hardin County is rural. Hardin County desires to maintain these 
areas as rural. Farming is sensitive to the effects of land use change and intensity. The division 
of land into small parcels and the presence of non-farming activities can drastically affect farm 
operations. In order to achieve the goal of protecting and preserving the agricultural industry, 
non-farm activities in rural farm areas should be tightly controlled.” (emphasis added)  

It further provides that Hardin County planning goals for rural areas include: 

- “Protect and preserve natural resources and environmentally sensitive features. Natural 
resources include prime agricultural lands, timber, wetlands, and other locally important 
heritage sites”. 

- “Rural commercial uses should be limited to those activities that are best suited to a rural 
location and are compatible with existing rural developments and agricultural goals and 
policies.” 

- “Direct development to areas with physical characteristics which can accommodate 
development.” 

- “Discourage development in areas with high corn suitability ratings, high water table, wetlands, 
flood plains, and environmentally sensitive areas.” 



4 
 

- “Protect the Iowa Falls Airport airspace. There are many uses that would present a height 
problem for aircraft . . .The Iowa Falls Airport is planning a cross wind runway so the airspace 
will be increased.” 
 

Increased setbacks achieve increased preservation of prime farm land from less subdivisions and less 
interruption of drainage. Increased setbacks also increase protection and preservation of the other 
natural resources valued in Hardin County.  They also increase protection of current and future airspace 
needs.   

Increased financial responsibility of the developer increases the likelihood of directing development 
away from more sensitive areas of the county such as those with infrastructure and nature resources, to 
areas of the county with physical characteristics which can more economically accommodate such 
development. 

Increased decommissioning requirements increases the likelihood of restoring the county’s natural 
resources. 

Increased submission requirements and procedures increases the likelihood of achieving the mandate 
that non-farm activities should be tightly controlled.  

 

Chapter 7: Economic Development of the comprehensive plan acknowledges that “commodity 
agriculture has remained the mainstay of the county’s economy”, and recognizes “a growing local foods 
system has become an ever more important outgrowth of that economy”.  It further refers to the 
Region 6 Planning Commission “Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS)” which is a 
long-range 20-year plan that listed ten major economic development goals, including: #1. Preservation 
and restoration of natural environment; #5 Support local food system; #9 Develop regional renewable 
clean energy sources. 

Increased setbacks achieve increased agricultural development of prime farm land for both crop and 
livestock production through fewer subdivisions and less impact on drainage. Subdivisions make for less 
efficient farming.  This supports the local food system.  Increased setbacks also increase protection and 
preservation of the natural resources valued in Hardin County, and the recreation industry they support. 
Increased setbacks also increase protection of current and future airspace needs.  Setbacks may pose an 
obstacle to commercial wind conversion projects, but variances and waivers can be obtained with due 
process.  

Increased financial responsibility of the developer increases the likelihood of directing development 
away from more sensitive areas of the county such as those best suited for agriculture and shifts the 
burden away from those engaged in agricultural use of the land.  

Increased decommissioning requirements increases the likelihood of restoring the county’s prime farm 
land and other natural resources. 

Increased submission requirements and procedures increases the likelihood of achieving the mandate 
that non-farm activities should be tightly controlled.  



5 
 

 

Chapter 8: Agricultural & Natural Resources / Cultural Resources & Community Character of the 
comprehensive plan indicates that the county’s residents soundly support preservation of agricultural 
land (96.4%). The County’s farmland accounts for 93% of the land surface, and commodity crops and 
livestock sales are of great economic value to the county.  Also, the County has numerus parks, trails, 
recreational facilities, wildlife areas and wetlands and is home to some of the most revered cultural 
resources including natural features and landscapes such as the Iowa River and Iowa River Greenbelt.  

 

[See reasonable bases for Chapters 3 and 7 above]  

 

Chapter 11: Implementation of the comprehensive plan adopts the Iowa Smart Planning Principles 
contained within Iowa Code Section 18B.1, and information specified in 18B.2(2), pursuant to Iowa Code 
335.5.  Smart planning requires the County to collaborate with individual stakeholders during planning 
of and implementation of land use decisions.  It requires promotion of equitable distribution of 
development costs and benefits.  It encourage promotion of clear and renewable energy use and 
efficiency. It stresses that development should conserve land and preserve historic resources. It 
emphasizes protection, preservation, and restoration of natural resources, agricultural land, and cultural 
and historic landscapes, and should increase the availability of open spaces and recreational facilities. It 
promotes building design that conserves natural resources and reduces waste and pollution.  Smart 
Planning further considers the local geography, natural resources and natural hazards; current land use 
and conflicts, water drainage and potential impacts on local watersheds.  Other considerations include 
the local heritage and quality of life.    

 

[See reasonable bases for Chapters 3, 7 and 8 above]  

Increased setbacks achieve increased agricultural development of prime farm land for both crop and 
livestock production through fewer subdivisions and less impact on drainage. Subdivisions make for less 
efficient farming.  This supports the local food system.  Increased setbacks also increase protection and 
preservation of the natural resources valued in Hardin County, and the recreation industry they support. 
Increased setbacks also increase protection of current and future airspace needs.  Setbacks may pose an 
obstacle to commercial wind conversion projects, but variances and waivers can be obtained with due 
process.  Increase setbacks also reduce the proximity of turbines to neighbors desiring to avoid blade 
flicker and preserving the natural esthetics of the rural landscape.   

Increased financial responsibility of the developer increases the equitable distribution of development 
costs and benefits by requiring the developer to provide more financial security up front for negative 
impacts that can occur over the life of the conditional use permit, and shifts those burdens away from 
those engaged in agricultural use of the land.  

Increased decommissioning requirements increases the likelihood of restoring the county’s prime farm 
land and other natural resources by requiring the developer to provide more financial security up front 
for negative impacts that can occur over the life of the conditional use permit. 



6 
 

Increased submission requirements and procedures increases the level of collaboration of all 
stakeholders, both during the planning and during the implementation of land use decisions under this 
ordinance for conditional use permits for commercial wind energy conversion in land zoned Agricultural. 
The proposed changes provide for collaboration between the County, its many boards and commissions, 
local airports and area emergency agencies, as well as an opportunity for collaboration with various 
State and Federal agencies.  

 

CONCLUSION / RECOMMENDATION 

The recommended changes are made in accordance with the comprehensive plan and Iowa law, and are 
designed to preserve the availability of agricultural land, to protect the health and general welfare, to 
promote the conservation of energy resources, and are made with reasonable consideration of the 
character of the area and the peculiar suitability of such area for particular uses with a view to the most 
appropriate use of land throughout Hardin County.  

 

 

   




